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ALMA AND JONQUIERE RAILWAY

The Premier of Quebec announced December gth, 1922 that an
order in cousil had been signed ratifying a contract between the
Government of Quebec and the Quebec Development Company for the
building of two dams at the Grand Descharge at point where the
Saguenay River drains the massive Lake St John. The plans for the
power development included the erection of a dam so as to divert the
entire flow of water from the Lake through the Grand Descharge. The
first power development plant was to be located at Iale Maligne and
was expected to produce 350,000 Horsepower. A second power
development was to be built some miles lower down the Sagunay
River near the mouth of the Shipshaw River. A railway WAS
NECESSARY TO CARRY CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TO THESE
SITES FROM THE Canadian National’s (ex Quebec and Lake St John
station) of Hebertville.

The Alma and Jonquiere Railway had been incorporated by the
Quebec Legislature in 1913 to build a railway from La barre or St
Gideon to the Little Descarge, the lale of Alma and Grande Discharge
with a second line to Jonquiere.

Work started from the CNR at Saguenay Power Junction near
Herbertville in early 1923.Three bridges were constructed by Dominion
Bridge Company. The first across the Bedar River one mile north of
the CNR junction sixty foot deck-plate girder girder bridge, the second
across the Little Descharge was a three span deck girder bridge , and
the third was a four span also across the Grand Descharge as part
of the power plant. This last bridge was two ninety foot and one 220
foot through truss spans. The railway was opened very shortly
afterwards.The railway company obtained two ten wheel steam
locomotives from the Canadian National Railways and one ex
Robeerval Saguenay mogul. The rolling stock consisted of one baggage
car one combination and two passenger cars, one steel snowplow and
five flatcars. In 1924 the Price Brothers and Company began



construction of a newsprint mill at Riverbend across the Petite
Sescharg River from the town of Alma. The Isle Maligne generating
stationhad a maximium capacity of 495,00 Horsepower The electric
capacity was used by Price for their paper mill and the Aluminium
development of ALCOA nearby at Arvida. The Alma and Jonquiere
Railway would serve the paper mill of the Price Brothers at
Riverbend, and an Aluminium refinery of the Aluminium Company of
Canada atSt Joseph d’Alma. Traffic consisted of hauling paper to the
CNR interchange and aluminium products between Arvida and St
Joseph d’Alma.

Effective January first, 1974 the Alma and Jonquiere Railway
was dissolved and the enterprise and assets were transferred to the
parent Roberval and Saguenay Railroad.



LOCOMOTIVES OF THE ALMA AND JONQUIERE RAILWAY.

NO. 1066

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

1048

14

101

102

4-6-0 Built Kingston 1903 SN 594 19 x24
ex Canadian Northern Railway 1066

ex Canadian National Railway 1066
4-6-0 Built Kingston 1902 SN 542 19 X 24 56
ex Canadian Northern Railway No. 1048
ex Canadian National Railway No. 1048
2-6-0 Built Montreal Locomotive Works 1910
SN 44265
ex Caviccichi and Paganno # 6
ex Roberval and Saguenay #6
2-6-0 Built Montreal Locomotive Works 6-1926
SN 66937 19 x20 507
ex Roberval and Saguenay No. 14
To A&J 12-5-1937
S-4 Alco-MLW 9-9-1949 1000 HP
Sold to Merrillees 12-1978 |
S-4 Alco-MLW 1951 1000 HP

Sold to National Research Council 3-15-1978



Three covered hoppers 3003-3006
Baggage car
Combination baggage-passenger

First class coach ex Quebec Central Railway No. 36, ren. 93 to A&J
1940, Laconia 1907
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By William R, Linley.

Ry

Phutography the Author,

Alma and Jonquiere Railway Company offers a Cana-
n example of the old shortline adage of just as wide,

not as loag as a Class One railway. & mere ten route
es long, the Alma and Jonguiere connects the Lake

at Jean communities of Isle Malisne, Riverbend, and

a with the Canadiuon Narienal's Chicoutimi to Montreal
nline.

nodv msidered as o single ecenomic region, Quebec's
g 5 JJean country is octually an amalgam of two
tinect though complimentary regiuons of economic act-
ty. To the ecust in the valley of the Saguenay lies

area of modern industrial activity focussing on the
juctioen of aluminum and pulp and paper. To the west
md the shores of the lake, fertile so0ils provide
basis of a diversified farming community. The Alma
Jonquiere fullows the boundary of these regicns
draws traffic from buth agricultural and industrial
lvities. The movement ol aluminum and paper-provide
table tral{ic base supplimented by seasunal movements
“ertilizers and feed.

itruction of the railway was completed in 1923 (rom
leney Power, twenty-eight miles west of Chicoutimi
Junctien point with the Canadian National, to River-
i on the norih bank of the Petite-Decharge of Lake

it Jean. Suvon therealter the newly erected Price
shers paper mill at Riverbend began to ship car-

Is of newsprint over the line.

.ng the 1920's, the increasing demand for aluminum
to the construction ol the Shipshaw dams and Arvida
5 of the Adluminum Cewmpany of Canada. 3Subseguently
g World War II, a further surge in the demand [or
num necessituted the erection of an aluminum red-
-on plant gt Isle Muligne. The aAlma and Jonquiere
extended (rom Riverbend tu Isle Maligne during this
od to facllitate construction of the aluminum plant
ol a dam tc provide power lor the new plant.

tently, o [urther extension wus planned, as National
'graphic maps show o projectued line f{rom Isle Maligne
:he Peribonca River near Ste. Moaique Luc St. Jeun.
logical extension of this line to the Peribonca

'r would have been to Dolbeau, linking up with the
wian National to provide a circle of track around
lake. . T Ten

wrpent with the congiruction of the dam at Isle

ey Tthe ercetion of Alcun's Isle Malizne works.

“Pu_ . Serforms an intermediote function in the
hum produztioen prucess drawing cars of alumina
\rwvida and =ending carloads of aluminum billets

“n's Kingston, Ontario mills,

A visit to the Alma and Jonquiere's modern offices in
April, 1969 provided an cpportunity to meet Mr. M. Lebel,
the line's Manager. A tour of the adjcining engine-
heuse was [eliowed by the presentation of a trip pass
and invitation to photograph the railway's engines.

Bouth engines are 1,000 hp. 5-4's numbers 10 and 11,
built at Schenectady, New York by Alco-GE in 1946.
Originally painted in a handsome combination of green,
vellow and red, the two zngines have recently been
piainted the bright vellow and red of the nearby Roberval
and Saguenay. This change in livery is indicative of
the integrazion of the Alma and Jonguiere with the
Robherval and Saguenay during 1968.

Consolidation of operations of the two Alcan lines

has brought about many changes in the operations of

the Alme and Jonquiere. Significant among these changes
ig o reduction from fifty to twenty-threein the number

of A & J employees. All engine repairs cther than routine
servicing are now performed at the recently expanded
Roberval and Saguenay shops in Arvida. Whenever either

ol the A & J engines travels to Arvidua [or an overhaul,

‘it is temporarily replaced by an R & § unit, commonly

an R5-2 or RS5-10, although low-nose RS5-18 No. 25 worked
on the A & J early in 1969.

Coincident with the transfer of control to the Roberval
and Saguenay was a change in u,erating puattern of the
rallway. Formerly a crew went on duty at 3:50 am and
performed switching and linehaul work until noon. At
12:530 pm, a secund crew hegan work continuing until
2:30 in the evening. Currently one crew does ull work
for the line, their activities being contrelled by radio
rom the Iste Maligne headquurters. The crew comnprises
four men, firemen having buen retirced I'rom service in
1964. Their day begins at noon and continues until
8:00 pm, cccasionally earlier if no early evening
switehing is required at the Alcan plant.

The centraulizing of engine servicing facilities at
Arvida has rendered surplus the A & J's shop at Isle
Maligne. Thus, despite the fact that is is a modern,
fully eguipped enginehouse, it will soon be closed and
the pruperty sold to Hydro-Quebec. By July 1968, an
extension to the unused Alma station will provide o
home for the two S-4's. The station itself will be
reopened to accomnodate necessary olfice personnel

ind to provide a central distributing point lor the
Canudian National Express agency.
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from the enginenouss v ron :
Here, outbound cars spotted the previous R
marshalled in a train ang depariure igs made for Alma
station, which is actually io piverbend, across the
from Alma. Lima station is the site
i at the station

Petite—Decharge

of a large Price prothers’ paper mill.

R cars are switched and cuts of 1paded paper cars are

- added to the southbound train. Switehing at the Price
mill is the task of 2 small 30-ton GE, No. 5 gerial
£29870, puilt at Erie, Pennsylvania in 1948.

the train descends
~Decharge-

Alma station,
of the petite

he stoP at
n the twin communities 4]

de tc & crossing

Following t
a steep Era

t
l
§ From this bridge may be see
g s1ma and Riverbend OO opposite banks of the river.
) The speed of the train decreases rapidly immediately
5 alfter crossing ihe river since ihe train is ascending .
the ruling grade on the railway- e pair ol Alcos A & J 101, Ie§plendent 1p LTS peint snheme o DILIENT
opog tons OB the winding climb away yellow and Tad. pauses to heve 1TS piloture taken whnils '
busy switehing igads of newsprint at &lme sTafion.

can manage only
rrom the river- The ctrugglie 1 prief, hOwever, and
the 559 engines regain thelr purbling composure as
Almo is left pehind. A speed of 30 to 33 miles per

is easily maintained for the palance ©of the The Canadian Ratio
journey to Saguenal ihe track crogses the sees outbound loade of paper
revel Tarmlands which rim Lake Saint Jearn. ror {nbound empty paper cars Sud gondolit

: . alumina.

BRI

nal interchange at Saguenay Power
and aluminum exchangud
1oads of

e

Y =

¢ Isle Mallgne a stop is often
a of a lurge feed and

gn the return trip t
perhaps uniguely

the location of the Almi 3
made at gy, Bruno station, sit
curiously,

Below is 2 map showing
Jonguiere Railway in the Lake 5t Jean region of
quebec. The towl marsed Naudville on the map is fertilizer distributor.
now called Riverbend. The A % J jpterchanges with among canadian railways, mileposts along the A & J
ine is at Lhe lower edge of the map- are located and 1ettered for the mid-point of each
mile, for exanple milehoards are passed at mile 1.5,
o The next $LOP peyond gt . Brund is at
cet off to ne spotted atl

ihe CN, whose 1

0.5, and 3.5
Alma gtation where cars are
the Price Brothers mill. The remaining ¢
veyed peyond 1¢ Tsle Maligne where the A

the Alcan plapt.

this operating cycle is repeated twice a
Unfortunately, {he Alma and

riline nrethren does

by depriving many
jew an

ars are con-
& J switches

‘éﬁmumwu_
Ay

Typically
day, five days & week.
Jonguiere 1ike many of her she
not operate on weekends, there
railway enthusiasis of the opportunity Lo v

iniercsting canadian railway.

the 100, moving
n the

yers we Seg both b & J alces nard at
1oads of paper and sluminud upgrade awey fTo
Pebtite DechaTRE towerd saguenay PoWeT.
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3oth &4 & J flcos rumbie B2ross the Pabtite Decharge of
frice 3rothers Paper k111 plant switcher, a the Sazuenay, snroute to Alme With & single borcas,
;oY Fon GE switcher, Ne. 5, 229870, built at zrie, The large mill i1n che background is the Prige 2rothers
.0 12 1948,  Note the positian,of the bepcon 11znt Ztverbend paper mill, The four distant smokestachs
BVE the bell atop the cab, eng also the location ar locate the 2lcan Isis Haligne alumsnum reduction
e horn. feoilicy.
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